
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Local Plans Sub (Planning and Transportation) 
Committee 

 
Date: FRIDAY, 22 JULY 2022 

Time: 10.30 am 

Venue: COMMITTEE ROOMS, WEST WING, GUILDHALL 

  

Members: Deputy Randall Anderson 
John Edwards 
Deputy Marianne Fredericks 
Martha Grekos 
Jaspreet Hodgson 
Deputy Shravan Joshi 
Natasha Maria Cabrera Lloyd-Owen 
 

Alderman Ian David Luder 
Deputy Alastair Moss 
Deputy Graham Packham 
Deputy Susan Pearson 
William Upton QC 
Deputy Christopher Hayward (Ex-Officio 
Member) 
 

 
 
Enquiries: Joseph Anstee 

joseph.anstee@cityoflondon.gov.uk 
 

 
 

 Accessing the virtual public meeting  
Members of the public can observe this virtual public meeting at the below link:  

https://youtu.be/unmoefJ1Hac 
A recording of the public meeting will be available via the above link following the end of 
the public meeting for up to one municipal year. Please note: Online meeting recordings 

do not constitute the formal minutes of the meeting; minutes are written and are available 
on the City of London Corporation’s website. Recordings may be edited, at the discretion 

of the proper officer, to remove any inappropriate material. 
 

Lunch will be served in the Guildhall Club at 1.00pm  
 

 
John Barradell 

Town Clerk and Chief Executive 

Public Document Pack

https://youtu.be/unmoefJ1Hac


 

 

AGENDA 
 
 
1. APOLOGIES 
 

 
 

2. MEMBERS' DECLARATIONS UNDER THE CODE OF CONDUCT IN RESPECT OF 
ITEMS ON THE AGENDA 

 
 
 

3. TERMS OF REFERENCE 
 To receive the resolution of the Planning & Transportation Committee on 26 April 

2022, appointing the Sub Committee and approving its terms of reference. 
 

 For Information 
 (Pages 3 - 4) 

 
4. ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN 
 To elect a Chairman in accordance with Standing Order 29. 

 
 For Decision 
  

 
5. ELECTION OF DEPUTY CHAIRMAN 
 To elect a Deputy Chairman in accordance with Standing Order 30. 

 
 For Decision 
  

 
6. CITY PLAN 2040: PROPOSED POLICY DIRECTIONS AND TIMETABLE 
 Report of the Chief Planning Officer and Development Director 

 
 For Decision 
 (Pages 5 - 30) 

 
7. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE SUB 

COMMITTEE 
 

 
 

8. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT 
 

 
 



TO: LOCAL PLANS SUB COMMITTEE    22 July 2022 
 
FROM: PLANNING & TRANSPORTATION COMMITTEE 26 April 2022 

 
 
6. APPOINTMENT OF SUB-COMMITTEES  

The Committee considered a report of the Town Clerk relative to the appointment of 
its Sub Committees and Working Party, their constitution and terms of reference. 
 
Local Plans Sub Committee 
The Town Clerk announced that, with ten Members expressing an interest in standing 
for the five available spaces from the Planning and Transportation Committee, a ballot 
was required.  
 
Following discussion, the Committee were of the view that the membership of the Sub 
Committee should be expanded to incorporate ten as opposed to five Members from 
the Planning and Transportation Committee for the ensuing year only, thereby 
negating the need for a ballot. 
 
RESOLVED - That the appointment, composition and terms of reference of the sub-
committees and working parties for the ensuing year are approved as follows:- 
 
a)  Local Plans Sub-Committee 
The Chairman and Deputy Chairman of the Grand Committee along with ten (for the 
ensuing year only) other Members as follows: 

• Deputy Randall Anderson 

• John Edwards 

• Deputy Marianne Fredericks 

• Martha Grekos 

• Jaspreet Hodgson 

• Natasha Lloyd-Owen 

• Alderman Ian Luder 

• Deputy Graham Packham 

• Deputy Susan Pearson 

• William Upton, QC 
 

Together with two ex-officio Members representing the Policy and Resources 
Committee and the Port Health and Environmental Services Committee. 

 
Terms of Reference 
The Committee first appointed a Sub Committee in October 2004 with the 
specific task of considering the Local Development Framework (LDF), which 
replaced the Unitary Development Plan as the spatial planning strategy for the 
City. It was later agreed that this Sub Committee would also be suitable for 
considering details of the traffic-related Local Implementation Plan (LIP) as well. 
Its Terms of Reference are simply to consider those types of documents in detail 
and make recommendations to the Grand Committee. 

 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 4



 

Committee(s) Dated: 

Local Plans Sub (Planning and Transportation) 
Committee 

22/07/2022 
 

Subject: 
City Plan 2040: Proposed policy directions and timetable  

Public 
 

Which outcomes in the City Corporation’s Corporate 
Plan does this proposal aim to impact directly?  

1,2,4,7,9,11,12 

Does this proposal require extra revenue and/or 
capital spending? 

Yes 

If so, how much? To be confirmed 

What is the source of Funding? To be confirmed 

Has this Funding Source been agreed with the 
Chamberlain’s Department? 

No 

Report of:  
Gwyn Richards, Planning & Development Director, 
Environment Department 

For Decision 

Report author:  
Peter Shadbolt, Environment Department 

 
Summary 

 
The draft City Plan 2036 was published for public consultation between March and 
May 2021. This report provides an update on the City Plan and proposes broad 
policy directions for a revised version, considering consultation responses and other 
issues. It also includes an updated timetable for progressing the Plan to a further 
public consultation and onward to public examination and adoption. Member views 
are requested on the scope of these policy directions and on how the Sub-
Committee would like to be involved in the review progress, including the frequency 
of future meetings.  
 
This report follows a previous report summarising the outcome of the consultation 
exercise, which was considered by the Grand Committee in December 2021, and a 
further report that outlined the proposed approach to evidence gathering, which was 
considered by this Sub-Committee in January 2022. 
 

Recommendation(s) 
 
Members are asked to: 

 

• Advise on the proposed policy directions and agree the timetable for 
progressing the City Plan. 
  

Main Report 
 

Background 
1. The City Corporation is preparing a new local plan to replace the current City of 

London Local Plan, which was adopted in 2015 and sets out development 
requirements up to 2026. A Proposed Submission draft of the new City Plan 
covering the period to 2036 was published for consultation between March and 

Page 5

Agenda Item 6



May 2021 (referred to as the ‘Regulation 19’ stage). A total of 1,327 formal 
representations were received from 171 respondents. Full copies of the original 
representations, with personal details other than names redacted, have been 
published on the City Corporation’s website at 
https://www.cityoflondon.gov.uk/services/planning/planning-policy/local-plan-
review-draft-city-plan-2040. 

 
2. In December 2021, the Grand Committee considered a report on key issues 

raised during the consultation. This report also outlined policy areas including tall 
buildings, climate change, offices, retail and housing where consultation 
feedback and/or other factors indicate that material changes will be needed to 
ensure that the City Plan will satisfy the relevant soundness tests at Examination 
and to provide a robust policy framework to guide future development. 

 
3. The Grand Committee agreed to revise the draft City Plan as outlined in the 

report and to extend the timeframe of the Plan to cover the longer period to 
2040, in particular to align with the headline net zero target in the City 
Corporation’s Climate Action Strategy. 

 
4. The Local Plans Sub-Committee in January 2022 considered a further report 

which outlined in more detail the additional evidence that would be required to 
support a revised City Plan. The Sub-Committee agreed that, in updating the 
evidence base, priority should be given to studies relating to topics that have 
been particularly affected by the pandemic and/or were subject to challenge 
during the consultation on the Proposed Submission Draft City Plan. The Sub-
Committee also noted that additional new evidence would be required to address 
the Mayor of London’s concerns about the City Plan tall buildings policy.  

 
City Plan Strategy 
5. Following the Sub-Committee in January 2022, further work has been carried out 

to identify the key changes in policy for the Corporation to progress the City 
Plan. These changes are needed to reflect City Corporation strategies, 
specifically the Climate Action and Destination City Strategies, to provide a 
robust policy framework which responds to changes in demand and use for 
office floorspace and retail trends post pandemic, and to respond to issues 
raised during the consultation regarding tall buildings and in relation to the Bevis 
Marks Synagogue.  
 

6. Appendix A summarises the policy shifts and related workstreams that are 
proposed to be taken forward as the Plan progresses during the autumn. 
Members are asked to consider these policy shifts and confirm that they are 
happy with the direction of travel indicated. Members are also asked to identify 
any other areas of policy shift that they would like officers to consider as the Plan 
progresses. 

 
7. It should be noted that, while these policy changes are substantial and will have 

a meaningful impact on the future development of the Square Mile, this work 
builds on the forward-thinking vision and spatial strategy set out in the draft City 
Plan. A number of the policy changes have also been signalled in earlier reports 

Page 6

https://www.cityoflondon.gov.uk/services/planning/planning-policy/local-plan-review-draft-city-plan-2040
https://www.cityoflondon.gov.uk/services/planning/planning-policy/local-plan-review-draft-city-plan-2040


to this Sub-Committee and the Grand Committee, and in these instances officers 
have further refined the scope of change and the evidence required.  

 
8. Alongside policy changes, there is also a significant opportunity for changes to 

be made to the format of the Plan and the way that the Corporation engages with 
its communities, to produce a plan which is exemplary. In doing so, the Plan can 
anticipate a number of the directions of travel signalled by central Government 
through the Levelling Up and Regeneration Bill. Key changes are: 

 
a. Production of a digital City Plan. An online, digital version of the Plan will 

incorporate 3D visualisations and modelling which will enable a fuller 
understanding of the opportunities and constraints on development and 
allow City communities to explore in more depth the Plan’s evidence and 
data and see how it has shaped the Plan’s policies. The Government is 
moving toward more digital planning and the City’s work will anticipate 
some of this ambition. A digital Plan will be presented alongside the more 
traditional style of Plan to ensure that it remains inclusive and accessible to 
all. 

 
b. Meaningful engagement. The City Corporation is revising its Statement of 

Community Involvement and looking to reset the way that we consult on 
planning policy documents (as well as on planning applications) to ensure 
that the consultation is meaningful and allows all of the City’s communities 
to participate in, and contribute to, the development of policy. The revised 
Statement of Community Involvement will be brought to the Grand 
Committee in the autumn. Officers are in the process of purchasing an 
online consultation platform that will enable information to be presented in a 
more user-friendly and attractive way and makes full use of social media to 
engage with communities alongside other forms of consultation. A detailed 
consultation strategy will be developed as the Plan progresses, setting out 
how the City’s communities can get involved and be kept informed at each 
stage of the Plan-making process. The proposed timetable for the Plan will 
also enable consultation to be dovetailed with consultation on a revised 
Transport Strategy. 

 
Effective and practical implementation of the Plan. An Implementation 
Strategy will be developed alongside the Plan, setting out how the Plan’s 
policies will be implemented and monitored. The Implementation Strategy 
will show how new development, partnership working and the City 
Corporation’s own programmes and strategies will work together to bring 
about the vision set out in the City Plan. It will be regularly monitored and 
reviewed, so that implementation of the Plan can respond flexibly to 
changes on the ground. 
 

 
Timetable 
9. To achieve the policy shifts set out in Appendix A, a range of new and updated 

evidence will be required.  
 

Page 7



10. Appendix B sets out a revised timetable for progressing the Plan, which 
envisages a series of meetings with the Sub-Committee for the rest of this year, 
prior to taking to taking the Plan to the Grand Committee in February 2023. This 
would be followed by consideration by Policy & Resources Committee and 
Court, prior to public consultation which is expected to commence in May 2023. 
This timetable is ambitious. To help achieve it, officers consider that regular 
meetings of this Sub-Committee will be required through to the end of 2022, 
preferably on a monthly basis to enable consideration of draft policies as they 
develop and to provide feedback on important evidence reports and policy 
directions. Further evidence work, including a Plan-wide viability assessment 
and completion of the Integrated Impact Assessment, will be required in January 
2023.  

 
11. The timetable set out in Appendix B involves a slight delay to that agreed by the 

Grand Committee in December 2021, which envisaged consideration of the draft 
Plan by the Committee in October 2022, due to staffing changes and shifting 
priorities. This delay has had the advantage of allowing extra time for post-
pandemic working and commuting patterns to emerge more fully and for 
Corporation strategies, such as the Destination City strategy, to be developed 
and inform the revised Plan. The delay has also meant that officers have been 
able better understand the Government’s ambitions for the planning system as 
detailed in the Levelling Up and Regeneration Bill.  

 
12. Members are asked to confirm agreement to the proposed timetable.  

 
Evidence studies in progress 
13. Consultation has commenced on the Whole Lifecycle Carbon Optioneering 

Planning Advice Note. This was agreed in draft by the Grand Committee on 7 
June 2022 and has now been issued for public consultation until the end of 
September. It is intended to strengthen policy requirements in the draft Plan in 
line with the draft Planning Advice Note, taking on board comments during this 
consultation. 
 

14. Public consultation on a Housing Call for Sites took place between 23 May 2022 
and 4 July 2022. This consultation asked consultees to nominate potential new 
housing sites which could be allocated for development in the draft Plan. Only 4 
sites were proposed. These are currently being considered by officers. Proposed 
sites and officer recommendations as to whether they should be taken forward 
into the Plan will be brought back to this Sub-Committee in the autumn. 
 

Corporate & Strategic Implications 
15. The preparation of the City Plan is informed by the Corporate Plan (2018-23) 

and the new Plan, when adopted, will help to implement a number of Corporate 
Plan objectives. It will support the delivery of key Corporate priorities, along with 
proposals to ensure a sufficient supply of business space and complementary 
uses to meet future needs. Preparation of the revised City Plan will be 
undertaken alongside the review of the Transport Strategy and the revised end 
date of the City Plan (2040) will align with the key net zero target in the Climate 
Action Strategy. 
 

Page 8



Financial implications 
16. As set out in the December report to the Grand Committee, approximately 

£220,000 has been spent to date on commissioning studies to support the City 
Plan over a 5-year period. At the January Sub-Committee meeting, it was 
estimated that at least £100,000 would be needed to update key parts of the 
evidence base. Further assessment of the evidence needs and for consultancy 
support has been undertaken suggesting approximately £200,000 will be 
required to update the evidence base and undertake statutory assessments. 
Currently there is provision for £120,000 in the Planning Policy Local Risk 
budget, which could be used to update evidence documents. However, 
additional funding will need to be found to ensure that the Plan is ready for 
consideration by the Grand Committee in early 2023. Additional funding will also 
be required in the 2023/24 budget to cover the City Plan examination costs. 
Officers will confirm the scope and cost of the evidence base over the summer 
and report back to the Sub-Committee in the autumn followed by a report to the 
Grand Committee. 

 
Staff Resource implications 
17. Preparation of the revised pre-submission Regulation 19 City Plan will be carried 

out in-house by the Development Plans Team, working alongside and supported 
by Development and Design colleagues in the Planning Service and by other 
services as appropriate. Consultant support will be required to progress a 
number of evidence studies and statutory assessments, with in-house staff 
managing the consultants’ work.  
 

Legal implications 
18. There are no specific legal requirements, other than the ongoing requirement to 

ensure that all relevant statutory processes are complied with during production 
of the City Plan. 
 

Equalities implications 
19. Preparation of the City Plan has been informed by an Integrated Impact 

Assessment which incorporates an Equalities Assessment. Any material 
changes to the Plan will be subject to further Equalities Assessment. 
 

Risk implications 
20. The December 2021 report to the Grand Committee identified the risks 

associating with preparing a revised pre-submission Regulation 19 City Plan as 
compared to submitting the current version for examination. The Grand 
Committee agreed to revise the City Plan and officers will continue to monitor 
and report back on any changes to the risk assessment as the project 
progresses.   

 
Climate implications 
21. The City Plan is one of the key mechanisms for achieving those targets in the 

Climate Action Strategy which relate to the Square Mile rather than the City 
Corporation’s own operations, in particular the net zero target for the Square 
Mile by 2040. It is intended that the revised City Plan will further strengthen 
alignment with the Climate Action Strategy. 
  

Page 9



Security implications 
22. There are no direct security implications. The draft City Plan includes policies on 

safety and security which attracted relatively few comments at the Regulation 19 
consultation. 

 
Conclusion 
23. This report provides an update on progress in reviewing the City Plan following 

the Regulation 19 pre-submission consultation in 2021. In December 2021, the 
Grand Committee considered a report on the outcomes of the consultation and 
agreed the key policy areas where change was required in response to the 
consultation, the Pandemic and to better align with other City Corporation 
strategies. The Committee also agreed an outline timetable for this work. In 
January 2022, the Local Plan Sub-Committee considered and agreed the 
detailed scope of work required to meet the City Plan timescales and the 
evidence required. 

 
24. Officers have further refined the scope of change required as well as more 

specifically identifying those policy areas where further evidence gathering is 
required. Members are asked to consider these policy shifts and confirm that 
they are happy with the direction of travel indicated and the revised timetable for 
progressing the Plan. Alongside policy changes, the intention is that the Plan be 
digitally enabled, that there is meaningful consultation with all of the City’s 
communities and that the Plan is more fully embedded into and takes account of 
other Corporate policies and strategies.  
 

Background Papers 

• City Plan: Update on progress and next steps: report to Planning & 
Transportation Committee 14/12/2021 

• Local Plan – Next Steps: report to Local Plans Sub-Committee, 31/01/2022 
 
Appendices 

• Appendix A: City Plan Policy Shifts 

• Appendix B: City Plan Timetable  
 
Report author 
Peter Shadbolt 
Head of Planning Policy 
 
T: 07523 931868 
E: peter.shadbolt@cityoflondon.gov.uk 
 

Page 10

mailto:adrian.roche@cityoflondon.gov.uk


C
it
y

 o
f 

Lo
n

d
o

n

1

City Plan 2040

July 2022

Appendix A: Key policy shifts and related 
workstreams for the City Plan 2040 

P
age 11



C
it
y

 o
f 

Lo
n

d
o

n

2

1. Overall strategy

2. Key policy shifts

3. Related workstreams

4. Timetable

P
age 12



C
it
y

 o
f 

Lo
n

d
o

n

3

Overall strategy:

• A City Plan that responds to pressing issues:

• Destination City

• The sustainability agenda

• Covid recovery

• An innovative business ecosystem

• An inclusive and welcoming environment

• A City Plan that is exemplary:

• Digital City Plan

• Meaningful engagement

• Concise and clear for everyone

• A City Plan that is effectively implemented:

• Purposefully aligning with the Corporation’s projects, 

programmes and strategies

• Working in partnership with stakeholders, expertise and 

benchmark internationally

• Meaningful monitoring and flexibility

P
age 13



C
it
y

 o
f 

Lo
n

d
o

n

4

Key policy shifts:

1. Destination City

2. Workspaces and SMEs

3. Zero Carbon by 2040 & greening the City

4. Retail, leisure and experiences – key role for BIDs

5. Large development and place-making

6. Reinventing the public realm

7. Sustainable servicing

8. Accessible environments

9. Inclusion, health and wellbeing

P
age 14



C
it
y

 o
f 

Lo
n

d
o

n

5

Destination City

Current approach Proposal

Encourages cultural 

spaces

Culture plans for major 

development

Support hotels in 

appropriate places

Support evening/night 

time uses if no 

unacceptable impact

Firmer requirement for cultural space and 

unique experiences in large-scale schemes

Requirement for ‘meanwhile’ uses

Celebrate the heritage and culture of the 
City – including diversity of the City’s story

Strengthen requirements for visitor facilities 
and management plans for operators

Look carefully at how evening, night time 

and weekend uses can support Destination 
City

Evidence

• Cultural space requirement feeds into viability testing

• Hotel needs assessment

Further work

• Cross-Corporation work to bring in cultural operators

• ‘What works’ piece on meanwhile uses

P
age 15



C
it
y

 o
f 

Lo
n

d
o

n

6

Workspace and SMEs

Current approach Proposal

Provide a proportion of 

flexible workspace for 

micro/SMEs where 

appropriate

Encourage affordable 

workspace for small and 

growing businesses 

where appropriate

Firmer requirement for flexible and 

affordable workspace in largest 
developments

Look at opportunities for specific types of 

workspace and partner organisations

Clear requirements for training, education 

and skills

Evidence

• Evidence on role of grade B office stock and modern flexible space for 
SMEs

• Demand for creative industries/tech/SMEs/etc and type of spaces and 

location required 

• Viability testing of affordable workspace requirements

P
age 16



C
it
y

 o
f 

Lo
n

d
o

n

7

Zero Carbon City by 2040 and greening the City

Current approach Proposal

Retain embodied 

carbon where feasible

BREEAM Excellent as 

minimum; aim for 

Outstanding

Carbon offsetting in 

“exceptional 

circumstances”

Put ‘optioneering’ approach into policy

Investigate potential for BREEAM 

Outstanding as minimum

A bespoke approach to Biodiversity Net 

Gain and urban greening

Clearer guidance about exceptional 

circumstances for offsetting, with a clear
mechanism and reporting for how 

offsetting is used

Evidence

• Refresh Sustainability Appraisal to demonstrate sustainability of Square 
Mile as a location for offices

• BREEAM outstanding to feed into viability testing

Further work

• Develop offsetting approach and reporting

• Integrate Climate Action Strategy approaches

P
age 17



C
it
y

 o
f 

Lo
n

d
o

n

8

Retail, leisure and experiences

Current approach Proposal

Four Principle Shopping 

Centres with same policy

Retail retained, more 

encouraged, supported 

by complementary uses

Retail Links – seek to 

maintain balance of 

retail/other commercial 

uses

Markets and pop-ups 

encouraged but with 

restrictions

Greater flexibility within PSCs – emphasis 

on adaptation, leisure and experience

More distinct policy approaches for each 

PSC

Remove retail emphasis for Retail Links –

maintain active frontages. More detail in 
Key Areas of Change

Promote markets where possible, to add 
to vibrancy

Encourage meanwhile uses for culture 
and making

Evidence

• Innovative commercial approaches and impact on high street vibrancy

Further work

• Work with BIDs on retail areas and KAOC to align strategies

• Work with City Surveyor to explore potential of assets

P
age 18



C
it
y

 o
f 

Lo
n

d
o

n

9

Large development and place-making

Current approach Proposal

Free, public areas required as 

part of all tall buildings/major 

developments

Culture Plans required for 

major developments

Encourage active frontages 

and other commercial uses at 

ground and basement levels 

Area-based priorities for place-

making in KAOC, eg roof terraces, 
community uses, open space, leisure 

centres, experience retail, F&B, 

cultural spaces, heritage 

experiences, education and training, 

etc

Requirement for large-scale 

development to deliver these 
priorities, working with other land 

owners and BIDs

Evidence

• Viability testing

Further work

• Use implementation strategy to analyse priorities for KAOC, with BIDs and 
others. Identify how CIL/s106 can be used to help secure/deliver. 

P
age 19



C
it
y

 o
f 

Lo
n

d
o

n

10

Reinventing public realm

Current approach Proposal

Development required to 

provide new routes where 

feasible.

Development required to 

provide publicly accessible 

ground floors

Additional open space 

sought wherever practical

Set out specific permeable routes in 
KAOC, and link requirements to 

permeability mapping

Firmer requirement for additional 

public spaces across the City, 
especially KAOC – and need for 

development to contribute

Create inclusive spaces – tailored to 
specific groups

Evidence

• Demand for public/open spaces and strategically significant places (eg
Thames) 

Further work

• ‘What works’ for publicly accessible and inclusive spaces

P
age 20



C
it
y

 o
f 

Lo
n

d
o

n

11

Sustainable servicing

Current approach Proposal

Require on-site servicing areas

Major commercial development 

must provide for freight 

consolidation

Encourage opportunities for last 

mile logistics hubs

Servicing outside peak hours (7-10; 

12-2; 4-7 weekdays)

Justify where last mile deliveries 

can’t happen by foot, cycle or ZEV

Phasing out loading bays and 

require collapsible lifts for 

servicing bays that can operate 
as hybrid public space

Strengthen requirement for last 

mile to be by sustainable 

modes

Facilitate river and rail freight, 
and onward sustainable 

deliveries

Identify potential last mile hubs

Evidence

• Demonstrate potential for servicing lifts

Further work

• Explore river and rail freight potential. Explore potential to convert existing 
service bays/parking in buildings as last mile delivery

• Review approach to construction management plans

P
age 21



C
it
y

 o
f 

Lo
n

d
o

n

12

Accessible environments

Current approach Proposal

Require buildings and open 

spaces to meet the highest 

standards of accessibility

Accessibility standards for hotel 

rooms; public toilets suitable for 

disabled people; accessible 

homes (10% M4(3); 90% M4(2))

Enable sensory play areas for 

SEN/disabled children & young 

people

Additional emphasis on 

neurodivergence, dementia, 

visual and hearing impairments, 

non-visible disabilities

Spaces (eg sensory roof terrace, 
City gardens) tailored toward 

specific groups, secured through 

s106/CIL

Work with Transport Strategy to 

secure public realm accessibility 

improvements

Further work

• Guidance on how to respond to different needs and minimise barriers

P
age 22



C
it
y

 o
f 

Lo
n

d
o

n

13

Inclusion

Current approach Proposal

Design and Access 

Statements should 

demonstrate a commitment 

to inclusive design and 

engagement with user 

groups

Play areas must be inclusive

Buildings must be inclusive for 

all regardless of disability, 

age, gender, ethnicity, faith 

or economic circumstance

“Inclusive City” as key objective 
across the City Plan – including 

economic and social inclusivity

Guidance on creating inclusive 

environments for all – extend to all 
protected characteristics

Avoid ‘exclusive’ public spaces

Child-friendly City – a strategy for 
delivering play spaces, encouraging 

independent mobility, and welcoming 

families. Require contributions/land 

from developers in appropriate places.

Further work

• Investigate LB Hackney approach to child-friendly spaces

P
age 23



C
it
y

 o
f 

Lo
n

d
o

n

14

Health and Wellbeing

Current approach Proposal

Requires health impact 

assessments for all major 

development

Require developers to 

promote healthy buildings

Emphasis on creating a healthy city –
look at best practice and key 

opportunities

Require WELL building standard (or 
similar), public toilets, defibrillators and 

drinking fountains

Additional emphasis for suicide 

prevention measures and signage (tall 
buildings; roof terraces)

Additional public realm, including 
quiet places

Evidence

• Evidence of need for more and varied public and open spaces

Further work

• Explore healthy building standards

P
age 24



C
it
y

 o
f 

Lo
n

d
o

n

15

Related workstreams:

1. Robust assessment of housing sites and typologies

2. Tall buildings evidence

3. Explore approach for Bevis Marks Synagogue area

4. Whole Lifecycle Carbon Optioneering Planning Advice 

Note

5. Lighting Planning Advice Note

6. Sustainability Supplementary Planning Document

7. Refreshed Statement of Community Involvement

8. Whole-Plan viability

9. Integrated Impact Assessment

P
age 25



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 26



C
it
y

 o
f 

Lo
n

d
o

n

1

City Plan 2040

July 2022

Appendix B: 
Programme for the City Plan 2040 up to consultation
Discussion topics for Local Plan Sub-Committee

P
age 27



C
it
y

 o
f 

Lo
n

d
o

n

2

Summer 
2022

• Commissioning evidence

• Informal engagement

• Scope digital plan

Autumn 
2022

• Finalise evidence and draft policies

• Prepare Statements of Common Ground

• Statement of Community Involvement consultation

• Commission digital plan

Winter 
2022

• Produce final Plan

• Finalise digital plan and engagement strategy

• Planning and Transportation Committee

Spring 
2023

• Policy and Resources Committee and Common 
Council for approval

• Begin consultation

P
age 28



C
it
y

 o
f 

Lo
n

d
o

n

3

Local Plan Sub-

Committee

Topics to discuss

(Note: these may shift as further 

programming takes place)

September 2022 • Health and wellbeing

• Accessible and inclusive environments

• Housing

October 2022 • Reinventing public realm

• Large development and place-making

• Sustainable servicing

November 2022 • Destination City

• Retail, leisure and experiences

December 2022 • Workspace and SMEs

• Zero Carbon City by 2040

• Heritage and tall buildings

January 2023 • Draft Plan

P
age 29



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 30


	Agenda
	3 Terms Of Reference
	6 City Plan 2040: Proposed Policy Directions and Timetable
	City Plan refresh - LP sub 22 July 2022 Appendix A
	City Plan refresh - LP sub 22 July 2022 Appendix B


